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Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

This Amendment No. 1 to Form 8-K amends our Form 8-K dated September 2, 2014, originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on
September 2, 2014 (the “Original Report”), to provide financial statements of New Breed Holding Company, (“New Breed”) required under Item 9.01(a) of
Form 8-K and pro forma financial information required by Item 9.01(b) of Form 8-K. This Amendment No. 1 effects no other changes to the Original Report. We
filed the Original Report to report the completion of the acquisition of New Breed pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated July 29, 2014.

Attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated herein by reference is the unaudited pro forma financial information contemplated by Article 11 of Regulation S-
X for the New Breed acquisition.

The consolidated balance sheets of New Breed and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
and the notes related thereto contemplated by Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2 and are incorporated herein by reference.

The unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets of New Breed and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and the related unaudited
condensed consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and
June 30, 2013 and the notes related thereto contemplated by Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3 and are incorporated herein by
reference.

 
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) Exhibits.
 
Exhibit
Number   

23.1   Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

99.1   Pro Forma Financial Information

  
Unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2014, and statements of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014
and twelve months ended December 31, 2013

99.2   Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired

  (i) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

  

(ii) Consolidated balance sheets of New Breed Holding Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013,
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and the notes related thereto

99.3   Unaudited Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired

  

(i) Unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets of New Breed Holding Company and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
and the related unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the
six months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 and the notes related thereto
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
 
XPO Logistics, Inc.

/s/ John J. Hardig
John J. Hardig
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 3, 2014
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 
Exhibit
Number  Description

23.1   Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

99.1   Pro Forma Financial Information

  
Unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2014, and statements of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014
and twelve months ended December 31, 2013

99.2   Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired

  (i) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

  

(ii) Consolidated balance sheets of New Breed Holding Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2013,
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and the notes related thereto

99.3   Unaudited Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired

  

(i) Unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets of New Breed Holding Company and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
and the related unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the
six months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 and the notes related thereto
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-176700, 333-112899 and 333-193582) and on Form S-8
(No. 333-183648) of XPO Logistics, Inc. of our report dated March 18, 2014, relating to the consolidated financial statements of New Breed Holding Company
and subsidiaries, which appears in the Current Report on Form 8-K/A of XPO Logistics, Inc. dated September 2, 2014.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Greensboro, North Carolina
November 3, 2014



Exhibit 99.1

On July 29, 2014, XPO Logistics, Inc. (“XPO Logistics” or “XPO” or the “Company”), entered into a definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “New Breed
Agreement”) with New Breed Holding Company (“New Breed”) providing for the acquisition of New Breed by XPO (the “New Breed Transaction”). New Breed
is one of the preeminent U.S. providers of non-asset based, highly engineered contract logistics solutions for multi-national corporations. New Breed’s service
offering includes omni-channel distribution, reverse logistics, transportation management, freight bill audit and payment, lean manufacturing support, aftermarket
support and supply chain optimization for customers in technology, telecom, e-commerce, aerospace and defense, medical equipment and manufacturing. A copy
of the New Breed Agreement was filed with the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 30, 2014. The closing of the transaction was effective September 2, 2014.

For pro forma purposes, the total consideration of $615.9 million consists of $585.8 million of cash paid at the time of closing, including an estimate of the
working capital adjustment, and $30.1 million of XPO Logistics common stock which represents the fair value of 1,060,598 common shares at the market price at
the close on September 2, 2014 of $32.45 per share. The final number of shares issued to the sellers was based upon the closing price of XPO’s common stock on
the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) on July 29, 2014 with respect to 50% of the shares and the closing price of XPO’s common stock on the NYSE on the
trading day immediately preceding the closing date of the New Breed Transaction with respect to the remaining 50% of the shares. The equity portion of the
purchase price has been adjusted for a marketability discount related to the holding period restriction associated with the common stock issued as consideration in
the New Breed Transaction.

On January 5, 2014, XPO Logistics entered into a definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Pacer Merger Agreement”) with Pacer International, Inc.,
providing for the acquisition of Pacer by the Company (the “Pacer Transaction”). Pacer is an asset-light North American freight transportation and logistics
services provider. The closing of the transaction was effective on March 31, 2014 (the “Effective Time”). At the Effective Time, each share of Pacer’s common
stock, par value $0.01 per share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time was converted into the right to receive (i) $6.00 in cash and
(ii) 0.1017 of a share of XPO common stock, which amount is equal to $3.00 divided by the average of the volume-weighted average closing prices of XPO
common stock for the ten trading days prior to the Effective Time (the “Pacer Merger Consideration”). Pursuant to the terms of the Pacer Merger Agreement, all
vested and unvested Pacer options outstanding at the Effective Time were settled in cash based on the value of the Pacer Merger Consideration. In addition, all
Pacer restricted stock, and all vested and unvested Pacer restricted stock units and performance units outstanding at the Effective Time were converted into the
right to receive the Pacer Merger Consideration. The fair value of the total consideration paid under the Pacer Merger Agreement was $331.5 million and consisted
of $223.3 million of cash payable at the time of closing and $108.2 million representing the fair value of 3,688,246 shares of the Company’s common stock at the
closing market price of $29.41 per share on March 31, 2014 less a marketability discount on a portion of shares issued to certain former Pacer executives due to a
holding period restriction. The marketability discount did not have a material impact on the fair value of the equity consideration provided.

On July 12, 2013, XPO Logistics entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “3PD Agreement”) with 3PD Holding, Inc. (“3PD”), Logistics Holding Company
Limited, Mr. Karl Meyer, Karl Frederick Meyer 2008 Irrevocable Trust II, Mr. Randall Meyer, Mr. Daron Pair, and Mr. James J. Martell to acquire all of the
outstanding capital stock of 3PD (the “3PD Transaction”). 3PD is the largest non-asset, third party provider of heavy goods, last-mile logistics in North America.
The closing of the 3PD Transaction occurred on August 15, 2013. The fair value of the total consideration paid under the 3PD Agreement was approximately
$364.3 million, paid in cash, deferred payments (including an escrow), and $7.4 million of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock.

The 3PD Transaction along with the Pacer Transaction and New Breed Transaction are referred to as the “Transactions” below.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and related notes combine the historical consolidated balance sheets and statements
of operations of XPO Logistics, the consolidated balance sheets and statements of income of New Breed, the consolidated balance sheets and statements of
comprehensive income of Pacer and the consolidated balance sheets and statements of comprehensive loss of 3PD.

For purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, XPO Logistics has combined the XPO Logistics consolidated
statement of operations with New Breed’s consolidated statement of income and Pacer’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period ended
December 31, 2013, and 3PD’s consolidated statement of comprehensive loss for the period ended August 14, 2013. The results of 3PD for the remainder of the
year ended December 31, 2013 were included with the XPO historical results. For purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2014, XPO Logistics has combined the XPO Logistics condensed consolidated statement of operations with New
Breed’s condensed consolidated statement of income for six months ended June 30, 2014 and Pacer’s condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the three months ended March 31, 2014. The results of 3PD and the results of Pacer for the remainder of the six months ended June 30, 2014 were included
with the XPO Logistics historical results.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 and six months ended June 30, 2014 give effect to
the Transactions as if they had occurred on January 1, 2013. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet assumes that the New Breed Transaction
was completed on June 30, 2014. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet and condensed combined statement of operations of XPO Logistics
as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2014 were derived from its unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2014 (as filed on
Form 10-Q with the SEC on July 31, 2014). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of XPO Logistics for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013 was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of XPO Logistics for the year ended December 31, 2013 (as filed on Form 10-
K with the SEC on February 26, 2014). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet and condensed combined statement of operations of New
Breed as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2014 were derived from its unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2014 included
in Exhibit 99.3 hereto. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of New Breed for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 was
derived from its audited consolidated financial statements for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 included in Exhibit 99.2 hereto. The unaudited pro
forma condensed combined statement of operations of Pacer for the three months ended March 31, 2014 was derived from its unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements as of March 31, 2014. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of Pacer for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013 was derived from its audited consolidated financial statements for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 (as filed on Form 10-K with
the SEC by Pacer on February 26, 2014). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of 3PD for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013
was derived from its unaudited consolidated financial statements for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013.

The historical consolidated financial information of XPO Logistics, the consolidated financial information of New Breed, the consolidated financial information of
Pacer, and the consolidated financial information of 3PD have been adjusted in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements to give effect to
pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the Transactions, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the statements of operations, expected to
have a continuing impact on the combined results. The pro forma events may not be indicative of actual events that would have occurred had the combined
businesses been operating as a separate and independent business and may not be indicative of future events which may occur. The unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements have been presented for illustrative purposes only and are not intended to represent or be
indicative of what the combined company’s financial position or results of income actually would have been had the Transactions been completed as of the dates
indicated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or operating
results of the combined company. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not include the impact of any revenue, cost or other
operating synergies that may result from the Transactions.



The Company funded the New Breed Transaction with the proceeds of a private placement of $500 million aggregate principal amount of 7.875% senior notes due
September 1, 2019 that was completed on August 25, 2014 together with cash on hand. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
information reflects this offering.
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XPO Logistics, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2014
(In thousands)

 
   XPO   New Breed  Pro Forma

Adjustments
2(a)  

 

 

  
Pro Forma
Combined     Historic   Historic      

ASSETS        
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 111,620  $ 75,566   $ (171,714)  (1)(4)(8)   $ 15,472  
Accounts receivable, net of allowances    342,182   114,023    —        456,205  
Prepaid expenses    12,764   4,293    —        17,057  
Deferred tax asset, current    6,885   1,848    1,310   (12)    10,043  
Other current assets    9,965   6,732    (3,151)  (8)    13,546  

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total current assets    483,416   202,462    (173,555)     512,323  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation    97,378   83,266    30,568   (3)    211,212  
Goodwill    540,954   62,357    318,873   (2)    922,184  
Identifiable intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization    231,915   3,600    132,710   (3)    368,225  
Deferred tax asset, long term    75   —      —        75  
Restricted cash    17,017   —      —        17,017  
Other long-term assets    10,075   10,912    5,743   (4)(5)(7)(9)    26,730  

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total long-term assets    897,414   160,135    487,894      1,545,443  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Total assets   $1,380,830  $362,597   $ 314,339     $2,057,766  
    

 

   

 

   

 

     

 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY        
Accounts payable   $ 216,969  $ 18,488   $ —       $ 235,457  
Accrued salaries and wages    16,454   18,960    —        35,414  
Accrued expenses, other    30,947   9,261    (1,393)  (8)    38,815  
Current maturities of notes payable and capital leases    1,565   —      —        1,565  
Other current liabilities    6,819   5,288    10,075   (10)    22,182  

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total current liabilities    272,754   51,997    8,682      333,433  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Convertible senior notes    101,074   —      —        101,074  
Long term debt, net of current maturities    —      288,565    211,435   (4)(8)    500,000  
Notes payable and capital leases, net of current maturities    484   —      —        484  
Deferred tax liability, long-term    21,658   20,330    53,905   (3)(9)(11)(12)   95,893  
Other long-term liabilities    34,108   9,536    3,962   (3)(6)(9)    47,606  

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total long-term liabilities    157,324   318,431    269,302      745,057  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Stockholders’ equity:        
Preferred stock    42,258   44,634    (44,634)  (13)    42,258  
Common stock    53   4    (3)  (1)(13)    54  
Additional paid-in capital    1,063,709   1,175    28,892   (1)(13)    1,093,776  
Treasury stock    (107)   —      —        (107) 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income    —      (9)   9   (13)    —    
Accumulated deficit    (155,161)   (53,635)   52,090   (10)(12)(13)    (156,706) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total stockholders’ equity    950,752   (7,831)   36,354      979,275  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $1,380,830  $362,597   $ 314,339     $2,057,766  
    

 

   

 

   

 

     

 

See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.
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XPO Logistics, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
(In thousands, except per share data)

 

 

  

XPO  

 

New Breed 

 
Conforming
Adjustments

3(a)  

 

 

  
Pro Forma

Adjustments
3(b)  

 

 

  Pacer   
Pro Forma

Adjustments
5(a)  

 

 

  

Pro Forma
Combined  

          Historic
January 1, 2014 -
March 31, 2014  

    
              
  Historic   Historic             

Revenue   $863,412  $ 290,117   $ —       $ —       $ 235,500  $ —       $ 1,389,029  
Operating expenses               

Cost of purchased
transportation and services    683,145   —      —        —        185,200   —        868,345  

Direct operating expense    31,092   242,439    10,989   (1)   (956)  (7)(8)    22,000   (399)  (6)(7)(8)(9)(10)    305,165  
Sales, general and

administrative expense    182,431   30,965    (10,989)  (1)   8,818   (1)(6)(11)(12)   47,600   (16,676)  (1)(2)(10)(11)(12)   242,149  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 
     

 
   

 
     

 

Total operating expenses    896,668   273,404    —        7,862      254,800   (17,075)     1,415,659  
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 
     

 
   

 
     

 

Operating (loss) income    (33,256)   16,713    —        (7,862)     (19,300)   17,075      (26,630) 
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 
     

 
   

 
     

 

Other expense (income)    250   —      —        —        (300)   —        (50) 
Interest expense (income)    13,461   9,581    —        11,101   (4)(5)    300   (91)  (5)    34,352  

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

     
 

   
 

     
 

(Loss) income before income tax
provision    (46,967)   7,132    —        (18,963)     (19,300)   17,166      (60,932) 

Income tax (benefit) provision    (5,070)   3,372    —        (15,926)  (2)(10)    (3,800)   8,860   (3)    (12,564) 
    

 
   

 
   

 
     

 
     

 
   

 
     

 

Net (loss) income    (41,897)   3,760    —        (3,037)     (15,500)   8,306      (48,368) 
Undeclared cumulative

preferred dividends    (1,475)   —      —        —        —      —        (1,475) 
Undistributed earnings

attributable to Series A
Preferred Stock    —      (2,597)   —        2,597   (9)    —      —        —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

     
 

   
 

     
 

Net (loss) income available to
common shareholders   $ (43,372)  $ 1,163   $ —       $ (440)    $ (15,500)  $ 8,306     $ (49,843) 

    

 

   

 

   

 

     

 

     

 

   

 

     

 

Basic loss per share               
Net loss   $ (0.92)             $ (0.93) 

Diluted loss per share               
Net loss   $ (0.92)             $ (0.93) 

Weighted average common shares
outstanding               

Basic weighted average
common shares outstanding    46,970       1,061   (3)     5,327   (4)    53,358  

Diluted weighted average
common shares outstanding    46,970       1,061   (3)     5,327   (4)    53,358  

See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.
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XPO Logistics, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(In thousands, except per share data)

 

 

 

XPO  

 

New Breed 

 
Conforming
Adjustments

3(a)  

 

 

 
Pro Forma

Adjustments
3(b)  

 

 

 

Pacer  

 
Pro Forma

Adjustments
5(a)  

 

 

 3PD   
Pro Forma

Adjustments
7(a)  

 

 

 

Pro Forma
Combined  

          Historic
January 1, 2013 -
August 14, 2013  

   
             
 Historic   Historic       Historic        

Revenue  $702,303  $ 586,923   $ —      $ —      $980,600  $ —      $ 214,457  $ —      $ 2,484,283  
Operating expenses              

Cost of
purchased
transportation
and services   578,796   —      —       —       753,900   —       147,239   —       1,479,935  

Direct operating
expense   6,355   476,224    24,817   (1)  (1,763)  (7)(8)  93,000   (1,590)  (6)(7)(8)(9)(10)   8,015   —       605,058  

Sales, general
and
administrative
expense   169,477   61,865    (24,817)  (1)  17,622   (1)(6)  119,200   26,112   (1)(2)(10)(11)(12)  66,289   (12,120)  (1)(2)(3)(4)(5)(6)  423,628  

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

Total
operating
expenses   754,628   538,089    —       15,859     966,100   24,522     221,543   (12,120)    2,508,621  

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

Operating (loss)
income   (52,325)   48,834    —       (15,859)    14,500   (24,522)    (7,086)   12,120     (24,338) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

Other (income)
expense   478   —      —       —       —      —       290   —       768  

Interest expense   18,169   19,942    —       21,283   (4)(5)  1,100   (363)  (5)   14,824   (14,824)  (7)   60,131  
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 
    

 
   

 
    

 
   

 
    

 

(Loss) income
before income tax
provision   (70,972)   28,892    —       (37,142)    13,400   (24,159)    (22,200)   26,944     (85,237) 

Income tax
provision   (22,442)   11,680    —       (14,485)  (2)   5,400   (7,576)  (3)   (5,369)   13,596   (8)   (19,196) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

Net (loss) income   (48,530)   17,212    —       (22,657)    8,000   (16,583)    (16,831)   13,348     (66,041) 
Undeclared

cumulative
preferred
dividends   (2,972)   —      —       —       —      —       —      —       (2,972) 

Undistributed
earnings
attributable to
Series A
Preferred
Stock   —      (11,948)   —       11,948   (9)   —      —       —      —       —    

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

Net (loss) income
available to
common
shareholders  $ (51,502)  $ 5,264   $ —      $ (10,709)   $ 8,000  $ (16,583)   $ (16,831)  $ 13,348    $ (69,013) 

   

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

Basic loss per share              
Net loss  $ (2.26)             $ (1.43) 

Diluted loss per share              
Net loss  $ (2.26)             $ (1.43) 

Weighted average
common shares
outstanding              

Basic weighted
average
common
shares
outstanding   22,752      1,061   (3)    24,388   (4)    —       48,201  

Diluted
weighted
average
common
shares
outstanding   22,752      1,061   (3)    24,388   (4)    —       48,201  

See accompanying notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Data

(Dollar Amounts are Presented in Thousands)
 
(1) New Breed Purchase Price

The purchase price of $615,857 and the allocation of the purchase price discussed below are preliminary, and subject to certain post-closing adjustments
including a potential adjustment to working capital. A final determination of required adjustments will be made based upon the final evaluation of the fair
value of our tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The purchase price consists of $585,789 of cash payable at the time
of closing, including an estimate of the working capital adjustment, and $30,068 of XPO Logistics common stock which represents the fair value of
1,060,598 common shares issued as consideration in conjunction with the New Breed Agreement at the market price on September 2, 2014 of $32.45 per
share. The final number of shares issued to the sellers was determined based upon the closing price of XPO’s common stock on the NYSE on July 29, 2014
with respect to 50% of the shares and the closing price of XPO’s common stock on the NYSE on the trading day immediately preceding the closing date of
the New Breed Transaction with respect to the remaining 50% of the shares. The equity portion of the purchase price has been adjusted for a marketability
discount related to the holding period restriction associated with the common stock issued as consideration in the New Breed Transaction. The following
represents the purchase price to be paid in tabular format:

 
Description     
Cash payment to Sellers   $585,789  
Shares issued to Sellers    30,068  

    
 

Fair value of total consideration   $615,857  
    

 

The following tables summarize the purchase price allocation adjustments of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as if the acquisition date was
June 30, 2014. The final allocation of the purchase price will be determined at a later date and is dependent on a number of factors, including the final
evaluation of the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Final adjustments, including increases or decreases
to amortization resulting from the allocation of the purchase price to amortizable intangible assets, may be material. Adjustments to the fair value of
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed will impact the value of goodwill recognized in the New Breed Transaction, and the adjustment to
goodwill may be material. For illustrative purposes, the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of New Breed’s assets acquired and
liabilities assumed assuming the acquisition date was June 30, 2014 is presented as follows:

 
Description     
Purchase price   $615,857  
Carrying value of New Breed net assets acquired    129,016  
Plus: Fair value of trademarks/trade names    4,460  
Plus: Fair value of contractual customer relationships asset    115,120  
Less: Fair value of contractual customer relationships liability    (5,640) 
Plus: Fair value of non-contractual customer relationships    16,730  
Plus: Fair value of acquired technology    19,580  
Plus: Fair value adjustment to property and equipment    25,196  
Plus: Asset for acquired favorable leasehold interests    2,034  
Less: Liability for acquired unfavorable leasehold interests    (3,049) 
Less: Fair value of deferred tax liability on step-up of net tangible and intangible assets    (68,820) 

    
 

Fair value of goodwill    381,230  
    

 

The following table shows the calculation of net assets acquired:
 

Description     
Carrying value of New Breed net liabilities   $ (7,831) 
Less: Historic cash and cash equivalents    (75,566) 
Less: Historic restricted cash    (3,151) 
Plus: Historic long-term debt    288,565  
Plus: Historic accrued interest    1,393  
Less: Historic deferred financing costs    (3,973) 
Less: Historic deferred contract costs    (2,677) 
Plus: Historic deferred rent liability    4,727  
Less: Historic internally developed software    (14,208) 
Less: Historic identifiable intangible assets    (3,600) 
Less: Historic goodwill    (62,357) 
Less: Historic deferred tax liability on purchase accounting adjustments    7,694  

    
 

Carrying value of New Breed net assets acquired   $129,016  
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(2) Description of New Breed Conforming and Pro Forma Adjustments, as presented on the June 30, 2014 Balance Sheet
 

 a. Represents purchase price adjustments for the merger with New Breed as follows:
 

 
(1) Represents an adjustment for the transaction price of $615,857, consisting of $585,789 of cash payable at the time of closing, including an

estimate of the working capital adjustment, and $30,068 representing the fair value of 1,060,598 common shares issued as consideration in
conjunction with the New Breed Agreement. For pro forma purposes, the purchase price payable in cash was funded as follows:

 
Description     
Available cash on hand   $ 111,620  
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance    474,169  

    
 

Total cash consideration payable   $585,789  
    

 

See footnote 4 for information on the debt issuance.
 

 

(2) Eliminates goodwill recorded in the historical financial statements of New Breed of $62,357 and records the preliminary fair value of
goodwill resulting from the pro forma allocation of the purchase price as if the acquisition had occurred using a preliminary estimate of
$381,230. The adjustment represents the net impact to goodwill of $318,873. Goodwill resulting from the acquisition is not amortized, and
will be assessed for impairment at least annually in accordance with applicable accounting guidance on goodwill. The goodwill as a result of
the acquisition is not deductible for income tax purposes.

 

 (3) Represents the preliminary allocation of purchase price to identifiable tangible and intangible assets, as follows:
 

   
Preliminary Fair

Value  
Trademarks / trade names   $ 4,460  
Non-contractual customer relationships    16,730  
Contractual customer relationships asset    115,120  

    
 

Total identified intangible assets   $ 136,310  
    

 

Contractual customer relationships liability    (5,640) 
    

 

Total identified intangible liabilities   $ (5,640) 
    

 

Technology    19,580  
Less: Historic internally developed software    (14,208) 
Plus: Fair value adjustment to other property and equipment    25,196  

    
 

Total net fair value adjustment to property and equipment   $ 30,568  
    

 

The adjustments of $136,310 to identifiable intangible assets, $5,640 to other long-term liabilities and $30,568 to property and equipment are
a result of the preliminary allocation of purchase price to identifiable intangible and tangible assets and liabilities. The adjustment to
identifiable intangible assets was recorded net of the historical net identifiable intangible assets of $3,600. A deferred tax liability was
recorded related to the step-up of tax basis due to the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to identifiable tangible and intangible assets
of $68,424.

 

 
(4) The pro forma financial statements reflect the issuance of $500,000 of long-term debt to fund the New Breed Transaction. Net proceeds after

fees are estimated to be $489,641. $10,359 of debt issuance costs are capitalized in other long-term assets. The cash purchase price of New
Breed is $585,789.

 

 (5) Represents the elimination in purchase accounting of $3,973 of historical deferred financing costs related to New Breed’s debt facilities.
 

 (6) Represents the elimination in purchase accounting of $4,727 of the historical deferred rent liability related to recording New Breed’s operating
lease expense on a straight-line basis over the respective lease terms.

 

 (7) Represents the elimination in purchase accounting of $2,677 of the historical deferred contract costs related to acquisition of New Breed’s
customer contracts.

 

 (8) Represents adjustments to the combined company for assets and liabilities of New Breed not acquired by XPO Logistics, including cash of
$75,566, restricted cash of $3,151, long-term debt of $288,565 and accrued interest related to the long-term debt of $1,393.

 

 
(9) Represents adjustments in purchase accounting to record assets of $2,034 for favorable leasehold interests related to New Breed’s real

property leases and liabilities of $3,049 for unfavorable leasehold interests related to other New Breed real property leases. A net deferred tax
liability was recorded related to the leasehold interests of $396.

 

 (10) Reflects adjustments to account for transaction costs of $10,075 related to the New Breed Transaction, net of tax.
 

 (11) Represents the net decrease to long-term deferred tax liabilities of $7,694 related to the pro forma purchase accounting adjustments recorded.
 

 

(12) Represents the effect on deferred taxes due to the release of the XPO Logistics Federal tax valuation allowance. The Federal tax valuation
allowance of $8,531 was released in full due to the deferred tax liability generated through the step-up of the intangible assets recorded in the
pro forma balance sheet which was deemed sufficient to allow the recognition of the deferred tax benefit related to XPO Logistics’ historical
net operating losses for which a full valuation allowance was taken. The state and foreign components of the valuation allowance were not
affected by the step-up due to differences in jurisdiction. $1,310 of the released valuation allowance was classified as current and $7,221 was
non-current.

 

 (13) Reflects adjustments to eliminate New Breed’s historical preferred stock, common stock, additional paid-in capital, accumulated
comprehensive loss and accumulated deficit of $44,634, $4, $1,175, ($9) and ($53,635), respectively.
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(3) Description of New Breed Conforming and Pro Forma Adjustments, as presented in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of
Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013

 

 a. Represents conforming reclassification adjustments to present New Breed historical financial information in line with the XPO Logistics presentation:
 

 

(1) To reclassify net sales, general and administrative expense of $10,989 and $24,817 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months
ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively, to direct operating expense to
conform to the XPO presentation. Historical information technology-related direct operating expense of $3,273 and $6,347 for the six months
ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations,
respectively, was reclassified from direct operating expense to sales, general and administrative expense. The expense represents the cost of
New Breed’s corporate information technology functions which XPO classifies as sales, general and administrative expense. Historical
depreciation expense classified within sales, general and administrative expense of $14,262 and $31,164 for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively, was
reclassified from sales, general and administrative expense to direct operating expense. The expense represents the depreciation related to
New Breed’s operating facilities which was previously classified in a separate line item on the historical statements of operations.

 

 b. Represents purchase price adjustments for the merger with New Breed as follows:
 

 

(1) To record pro forma depreciation and amortization expense of $12,471 and $22,403 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve
months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively, on the portion of the
purchase price allocated to tangible and intangible assets and liabilities. Historical depreciation expense related to New Breed’s proprietary
technology was $2,367 and $4,194 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively.
Historical amortization expense of New Breed’s intangible assets was $0 and $942 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months
ended December 31, 2013, respectively. The pro forma adjustment reflects the incremental increase to depreciation and amortization expense
of $10,104 and $17,267 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively. Pro forma
depreciation and amortization is calculated as follows:

 
        Estimated Depreciation/Amortization (a)  

  
Preliminary Fair

Value   
Estimated Weighted
Average Life (years)  

For the 6 months ended
June 30, 2014   

For the 12 months
ended December 31,

2013  
Trademarks / trade names  $ 4,460    1.00   $ —     $ 4,460  
Non-contractual customer

relationships   16,730    14.00    598   1,195  
Contractual customer relationships

asset   115,120    12.00    7,712   10,618  
Contractual customer relationships

liability   (5,640)   5.00    (572)   (3,335) 
   

 
    

 
   

 

 $ 130,670    $ 7,738  $ 12,938  
   

 

    

 

   

 

    
Technology  $ 19,580    4.00   $ 2,448  $ 4,895  
Fair value adjustment to property and

equipment   25,196    5.51    2,285   4,570  
   

 
    

 
   

 

 $ 44,776    $ 4,733  $ 9,465  
   

 

    

 

   

 

    
Total depreciation and amortization

expense    $ 12,471  $ 22,403  
     

 

   

 

 

 

(a) For the trademarks/trade names and contractual customer relationships intangible assets and liabilities, amortization expense has been
calculated in proportion to the weight of the undiscounted cash flows used to determine the fair value of the respective assets and
liabilities. For the remaining intangible assets, amortization expense has been calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life.

 

 (2) Represents the income tax effect of the pro forma adjustments calculated using an estimated statutory tax rate of 39.0% (i.e., the United States
statutory income tax rate of 35.0% plus an estimated blended state income tax rate of 4.0%).

 

 (3) Represents the adjustment to basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the effect of 1,060,598 shares issued as consideration
in the New Breed Transaction.

 

 
(4) To remove historic interest expense related to the long-term debt not assumed in the New Breed Transaction and the amortization of deferred

financing costs eliminated in purchase accounting of $9,623 and $20,164 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended
December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively.

 

 

(5) To record interest expense related to the assumed debt issuance by XPO Logistics and amortization of the respective debt issuance costs
described above in balance sheet footnote 4 of $20,724 and $41,447 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended
December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively. The pro forma adjustments assume an
interest rate on the debt of 7.875%.

 

 (6) To remove historic amortization of the deferred rent liability eliminated in purchase accounting of ($500) and $355 for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively.

 

 (7) To remove amortization of the deferred contract costs eliminated in purchase accounting of $914 and $1,668 for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively.
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(8) To record net amortization of acquired favorable and unfavorable leasehold interests recorded in purchase accounting of ($42) and ($95) for

the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of
operations, respectively.

 

 
(9) To eliminate undistributed earnings attributable to Series A preferred stock of New Breed in purchase accounting of $2,597 and $11,948 for

the six months ended June 30, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of
operations, respectively.

 

 

(10) Represents the income tax effect of releasing the XPO Logistics Federal tax valuation allowance of $8,531 for the six months ended June 30,
2014 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations. The XPO Logistics Federal tax valuation allowance was released in
full due to the deferred tax liability generated through the step-up of the intangible assets recorded in the pro forma balance sheet which was
deemed sufficient to allow the recognition of the deferred tax benefit related to XPO Logistics’ historical net operating losses for which a full
valuation allowance was taken. The state and foreign components of the valuation allowance were not affected by the step-up due to
differences in jurisdiction.

 

 (11) Represents the removal of $446 of non-recurring deal costs incurred by New Breed in the six ended June 30, 2014 in conjunction with the
New Breed Transaction.

 

 (12) Represents the removal of $340 of non-recurring deal costs incurred by XPO in the six ended June 30, 2014 in conjunction with the New
Breed Transaction.

 
(4) Pacer Purchase Price

The purchase price of $331,488 and the allocation of the purchase price below are considered final, except for the fair value of deferred taxes and assumed
liabilities. For illustrative purposes the allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of Pacer’s net assets acquired at the acquisition date of March 31, 2014 is
presented as follows.
 

Description     
Purchase price   $331,488  
Carrying value of Pacer net assets acquired    85,415  
Plus: Fair value of trademarks / trade names    2,760  
Plus: Fair value of non-compete agreements    2,310  
Plus: Fair value of contractual customer relationships    66,250  
Plus: Fair value of non-contractual customer relationships    1,010  
Plus: Fair value of acquired technology    13,190  
Less: Fair value adjustment to property and equipment    (2,501) 
Plus: Asset for acquired favorable leasehold interests    1,455  
Less: Liability for acquired unfavorable leasehold interests    (3,941) 
Less: Net deferred tax liability on step-up of net tangible and intangible assets    (12,364) 

    
 

Fair value of goodwill   $177,904  
    

 

 
(5) Description of Pacer Pro Forma Adjustments, as presented for the three months ended March 31, 2014 in the six months ended June 30, 2014

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations and in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of
Operations for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

 

 a. Represents purchase price adjustments for the merger with Pacer as follows:
 

 

(1) To record pro forma depreciation and amortization expense of $4,605 and $30,534 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve
months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, respectively, on the portion of the
purchase price allocated to tangible and intangible assets. There was no historical intangible asset amortization expense recorded by Pacer for
the three and twelve month periods, respectively. Historical depreciation expense related to Pacer’s proprietary technology was $473 and
$1,786 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively. The pro forma adjustments are
shown on a net basis. Pro forma depreciation and amortization is calculated as follows:
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        Estimated Depreciation/Amortization (a)  

  Fair Value  
Estimated Weighted
Average Life (years)  

For the 3 months ended
March 31, 2014   

For the 12 months
ended December 31,

2013  
Trademarks / trade names  $ 2,760    1.00   $ —     $ 2,760  
Non-compete agreements   2,310    6.00    96   385  
Non-contractual customer relationships   1,010    14.00    18   72  
Contractual customer relationships - # 1   25,800    8.00    672   3,380  
Contractual customer relationships - # 2   39,490    3.00    3,022   20,772  
Contractual customer relationships - # 3   960    3.00    80   297  

   
 

    
 

   
 

 $ 72,330    $ 3,888  $ 27,666  
   

 

    

 

   

 

Technology  $ 13,190    4.00   $ 824  $ 3,298  
Fair value adjustment to property and

equipment   (2,501)   5.82    (107)   (430) 
   

 
    

 
   

 

 $ 10,689    $ 717  $ 2,868  
   

 

    

 

   

 

Total depreciation and amortization
expense    $ 4,605  $ 30,534  

     

 

   

 

 

 
(a) For the trademarks/trade names and customer relationships intangible assets, amortization expense has been calculated in proportion to the

weight of the undiscounted cash flows used to determine the fair value of the respective assets. For the remaining intangible assets,
amortization expense has been calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life.

 

 

(2) As part of the Pacer Transaction, Pacer management entered into new employment agreements with XPO Logistics which provide for stock
compensation. Based on the contractual nature of the agreements, the adjustments reflect the change in stock compensation expense under each
arrangement. All new arrangements include only time-based awards. Stock compensation under the new agreements was $194 and $1,708 for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively. Pacer had historic stock compensation expense of
$555 and $2,523 for the three and twelve month periods, respectively. The pro forma adjustments show the respective net differences to stock
compensation expense of $361 and $815, respectively.

 

 (3) Represents the income tax effect of the pro forma adjustments calculated using an estimated statutory tax rate of 37.5% (i.e., the United States
statutory income tax rate of 35.0% plus an estimated blended state income tax rate of 2.5%).

 

 (4) Represents the adjustment to basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding to account for the effects of the August 2013 and February 2014
equity issuances and the Pacer and 3PD Transactions as if they had occurred on January 1, 2013 for purposes of presenting earnings per share.

 

 (5) To remove historic interest expense related to the amortization of deferred financing costs eliminated in purchase accounting of $91 and $363 for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively.

 

 (6) To remove historic amortization of the deferred rent liability eliminated in purchase accounting of $22 and $157 for the three months ended March 31,
2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively.

 

 (7) To remove historic amortization of the lease origination costs eliminated in purchase accounting of $13 and $51 for the three months ended March 31,
2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively.

 

 (8) To remove historic amortization of the deferred planned major maintenance costs eliminated in purchase accounting of $268 and $1,069 for the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively.

 

 (9) To remove historic amortization of the deferred gain on sale leaseback transactions eliminated in purchase accounting of $76 and $698 for the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively.

 

 

(10) To record net amortization of the favorable and unfavorable leasehold interests recorded in purchase accounting related to Pacer’s railcar, chassis and
real property leases of $300 and $1,662 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve months ended December 31, 2013, respectively. $216
and $1,325 were recorded through direct operating expense and $84 and $337 were recorded through sales, general and administrative expense,
respectively, based on the nature of the respective leases.

 

 (11) Represents the removal of $15,887 and $1,307 of non-recurring deal costs incurred by Pacer in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve
months ended December 31, 2013, respectively, in conjunction with the Pacer Transaction.

 

 (12) Represents the removal of $4,476 and $177 of non-recurring deal costs incurred by XPO in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and twelve
months ended December 31, 2013, respectively, in conjunction with the Pacer Transaction.

 
(6) 3PD Purchase Price

The purchase price of $364,329 and the allocation of the purchase price below are considered final. For illustrative purposes the allocation of the purchase
price to the fair value of 3PD’s net assets acquired at the acquisition date of August 15, 2013 is presented as follows.
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Description     
Purchase price   $364,329  
Carrying value of 3PD net assets acquired    14,026  
Plus: Fair value of trademarks / trade names    5,900  
Plus: Fair value of non-compete agreements    1,550  
Plus: Fair value of customer relationships    110,600  
Plus: Fair value of carrier relationships    12,100  
Plus: Fair value of acquired technology    18,000  
Less: Net deferred tax liability on step-up of net tangible and intangible assets    (29,196) 

    
 

Fair value of goodwill   $231,349  
    

 

 
(7) Description of 3PD Pro Forma Adjustments, as presented for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013 in the twelve months ended December 31, 2013

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations
 

a. Represents purchase price adjustments for the acquisition of 3PD as follows:
 

 

(1) To record pro forma depreciation and amortization expense of $23,983 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of operations on the portion of the purchase price allocated to tangible and intangible assets. 3PD had historic
depreciation and amortization of the respective tangible and intangible assets of $6,812 for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013 while XPO
recorded $9,707 of depreciation and amortization expense for the August 15, 2013 to December 31, 2013 post-acquisition period. The pro
forma adjustment reflects the incremental increase to depreciation and amortization expense of $7,464 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013. Pro forma depreciation and amortization is calculated as follows:

 

   
Fair Value  

  
Estimated
Weighted

Average Life
(years)  

  
Estimated Depreciation/Amortization

(a)  
       For the year ended December 31, 2013 
Trademarks / tradenames   $ 5,900     4.00    $ 1,740  
Non-compete agreements - principals   950     5.00     190  
Non-compete agreements - other

executives    600     4.00     150  
Carrier relationships    12,100     2.00     6,050  
Customer relationships    110,600     10.00     11,353  

    
 

      
 

  $130,150      $ 19,483  
    

 

      

 

Technology   $ 18,000     4.00    $ 4,500  
        

 

Total depreciation and amortization
expense       $ 23,983  

        

 

 

 
(a) For the trademarks/trade names and customer relationships intangible assets, amortization expense has been calculated in proportion to

the weight of the undiscounted cash flows used to determine the fair value of the respective assets. For the remaining intangible assets,
amortization expense has been calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life.

 

 (2) Represents the removal of management fees related to the former owners of 3PD of $745 for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013 unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of operations.

 

 

(3) As part of the 3PD Transaction, 3PD management entered into new employment agreements with XPO Logistics which provide for stock
compensation. Based on the contractual nature of the agreements, the adjustment reflects the change in stock compensation expense under each
arrangement. Stock compensation under the new agreements was $497 for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013. 3PD had historic stock compensation
expense of $1,597 for the 226 day period. The pro forma adjustment shows the net difference to stock compensation expense of ($1,100). The stock
compensation expense recognized in the pro forma financial statements for the new arrangements includes only the time-based awards granted.
Compensation expense has not been recognized for performance-based awards due to the inability to determine whether the performance goals would
have been met assuming the performance based targets were set on January 1, 2013.

 

 (4) Represents the removal of amortization related to deferred financing costs of 3PD not acquired in the 3PD Transaction of $1,117 for the 226 days
ended August 14, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations.

 

 (5) Represents the removal of $13,301 of non-recurring deal costs incurred by Sellers in the 226 days ended August 14, 2013 unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of operations in conjunction with the 3PD Transaction.

 

 (6) Represents the removal of $3,321 of non-recurring deal costs incurred by XPO in the 226 days ended August 14, 2013 unaudited pro forma condensed
combined statement of operations in conjunction with the 3PD Transaction.

 

 (7) Represents the removal of interest related to debt of 3PD not assumed in the 3PD Transaction of $14,824 for the 226 days ended August 14, 2013
unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations.

 

 (8) Represents the income tax effect of the pro forma adjustments calculated using an estimated statutory tax rate of 38.0% (i.e., the United States
statutory income tax rate of 35.0% plus an estimated blended state income tax rate of 3.0%).
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of New Breed Holding Company:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of New Breed
Holding Company (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

March 18, 2014
Greensboro, North Carolina
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

 
   December 31,  
ASSETS   2013   2012  
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 75,289   $ 56,166  
Trade accounts receivable, net    79,795    75,999  
Unbilled contract receivables    36,405    41,473  
Inventories    5,346    3,237  
Deferred income taxes    858    1,219  
Income taxes receivable    1,518    5,797  
Prepaid and other current assets    9,398    6,381  

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    208,609    190,272  
Property and equipment, net    84,337    90,669  
Goodwill    62,357    62,357  
Intangible assets, net    3,600    4,542  
Other assets    13,284    14,800  

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $372,187   $362,640  
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable   $ 33,915   $ 32,868  
Accrued liabilities    30,865    30,455  
Current portion of long–term debt    —      3,000  

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    64,780    66,323  
Long-term debt, net of current portion    288,356    294,110  
Other long-term liabilities    8,188    7,811  
Deferred income taxes    22,438    24,366  

    
 

   
 

Total liabilities    383,762    392,610  
    

 
   

 

Commitments and contingencies    
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):    

Series A convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value, $1,000 stated value; 100,000 shares authorized, 44,634 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively    44,634    44,634  

Common stock, $.01 par value; 1,500,000 shares authorized, 353,659 and 346,659 shares issued and outstanding at December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively    4    3  

Capital in excess of par value    1,175    —    
Accumulated deficit    (57,395)   (74,607) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income    7    —    

    
 

   
 

Total stockholders’ deficit    (11,575)   (29,970) 
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit   $372,187   $362,640  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands)

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
Net revenue   $586,923   $ 548,663   $565,458  
Operating expenses:     

Cost of operations    476,224    437,518    454,578  
Depreciation and amortization    32,528    32,197    27,106  
Selling, general and administrative    29,337    43,186    24,436  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    538,089    512,901    506,120  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Operating income    48,834    35,762    59,338  
Interest expense, net    (19,942)   (10,678)   (5,781) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Income before income taxes    28,892    25,084    53,557  
Provision for income taxes    11,680    5,219    22,138  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income    17,212    19,865    31,419  
Dividends paid to Series A Preferred Stockholders    —      (102,811)   —    
Undistributed earnings attributable to Series A Preferred Stock    (11,948)   —      (21,832) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders   $ 5,264   $ (82,946)  $ 9,587  
    

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands)

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2013    2012    2011  
Net income   $17,212    $19,865    $31,419  
Other comprehensive income (loss):       

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of related taxes    7     8     (10) 
    

 
    

 
    

 

Total comprehensive income   $17,219    $19,873    $31,409  
    

 

    

 

    

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
(in thousands, except share data)

 

   

Series A
Convertible
Preferred

Stock  
  

 
Common Stock    

Capital in
Excess of Par

Value  
 

Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated
Deficit)  

 

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 
Total

Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit)      Shares    Amount      

Balances, January 1, 2011   $ 44,634     346,659    $ 3    $ 14,078   $ 7,754   $ 2   $ 66,471  
Net income      —       —       —      31,419    —      31,419  
Foreign currency translation adjustment    —       —       —       —      —      (10)   (10) 
Stock based compensation    —       —       —       235    —      —      235  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balances, December 31, 2011    44,634     346,659     3     14,313    39,173    (8)   98,115  
Net income    —       —       —       —      19,865    —      19,865  
Foreign currency translation adjustment    —       —       —       —      —      8    8  
Cash dividend paid to stockholders    —       —       —       (14,313)   (133,645)   —      (147,958) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balances, December 31, 2012    44,634     346,659     3     —      (74,607)   —      (29,970) 
Net income    —       —       —       —      17,212    —      17,212  
Foreign currency translation adjustment    —       —       —       —      —      7    7  
Exercise of common stock options    —       7,000     1     396    —      —      397  
Stock-based compensation tax benefits    —       —       —       779    —      —      779  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balances, December 31, 2013   $ 44,634     353,659    $ 4    $ 1,175   $ (57,395)  $ 7   $ (11,575) 
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
Cash flows from operating activities:     

Net income   $ 17,212   $ 19,865   $ 31,419  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Non-cash items:     
Depreciation and amortization    32,528    32,197    27,106  
Excess tax benefit from stock option expense    (865)   —      —    
Stock based compensation    —      —      235  
Non-cash interest expense    1,428    2,884    880  
Non-cash rent expense    (320)   219    282  
Deferred income taxes    (1,653)   3,760    7,373  
(Gain) loss on disposal of equipment    96    (6)   (92) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
Trade accounts receivable    (3,796)   410    4,659  
Unbilled contract receivables    5,068    (12,734)   5,191  
Inventories    (2,109)   (575)   3,231  
Prepaid and other current assets    (2,097)   681    1,131  
Other assets    (1,021)   (941)   (640) 
Accounts payable    1,225    5,491    (1,107) 
Accrued liabilities    (107)   4,574    (6,833) 
Income taxes receivable    5,144    (4,334)   5,111  
Deferred revenue    517    (256)   (5,633) 
Other long-term liabilities    697    (732)   (1,409) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    51,947    50,503    70,904  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Cash flows from investing activities:     
Purchases of property and equipment and contract costs    (24,933)   (43,696)   (32,710) 
(Payments of) receipt of deposits    75    (279)   260  
Proceeds from the sale of equipment    22    36    97  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (24,836)   (43,939)   (32,353) 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Cash flows from financing activities:     
Borrowings on revolving loan facility    —      5,700    15,500  
Repayments on revolving loan facility    —      (5,700)   (15,500) 
Proceeds from Senior Secured Credit Facility    —      297,000    —    
Repayments of Senior Secured Credit Facility    (9,250)   —      —    
Repayments of 2010 Credit Facility    —      (108,750)   (28,750) 
Repayments of existing long-term debt    —      (145)   (482) 
Payment of dividends    —      (147,958)   —    
Net proceeds from stock option exercise    397    —      —    
Excess tax benefits from stock option exercise    865    —      —    
Payment of debt issuance costs    —      (5,518)   —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (7,988)   34,629    (29,232) 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net increase in cash    19,123    41,193    9,319  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year    56,166    14,973    5,654  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year   $ 75,289   $ 56,166   $ 14,973  
    

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

New Breed Holding Company (“New Breed” or the “Company”), through its subsidiaries, provides specialized logistics and comprehensive supply chain
management solutions to large multi-national corporations and government agencies. Drawing on a combination of industry expertise, functional capabilities and
technology, New Breed designs, implements and executes customized supply chain solutions to help companies manage mission-critical processes, reduce
operating costs and achieve competitive advantage. New Breed seeks long-term, multifaceted relationships with its clients, providing solutions that improve their
business process by transforming their supply chains. The Company conducts operations principally in the United States.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned. All significant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Company presents costs in the Consolidated Statements of Income based on the nature of the costs incurred. Substantially all these costs are incurred in
the provision of services to clients in the generation of the Company’s revenue.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 18, 2014, the date these financial statements were issued.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US
GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Such judgments affect the reported amounts in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. On an on-going basis, the Company reviews its estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and various other assumptions that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is the effect of foreign currency translations, net of related taxes. Comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 totaled $17,219, $19,873 and $31,409, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash equivalents to be those investments that are highly liquid, readily convertible to cash and that mature within three months from
date of purchase.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of funds set aside and restricted for specific payments. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, the Company has restricted cash of $2,402 and $1,253 included in prepaid and other current assets.

The balance in restricted cash at December 31, 2013 and 2012 represents funds set aside and used to fund healthcare claims for employees who are covered
by the McNamara-O’Hara Service Contract Act (SCA) as the Company is self-insured for such claims. These claims are paid by a third party insurance provider.

Revenue and Costs Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue once persuasive evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable and
collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is recorded on a gross basis, without deducting third-party services costs, when the Company is acting as a principal
with substantial risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue is recorded on a net basis, after deducting third-party services costs, when acting as an agent without
substantial risks and rewards of ownership. In relation to purchased transportation to the extent the Company is acting as an agent in the arrangements, revenue is
reported on a net basis, after deducting purchased transportation costs of $17,170, $20,049 and $23,554 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

A significant portion of the Company’s revenue is recognized based on objective criteria that do not require significant estimates or uncertainties. For
example, transaction volumes, time and material, fixed-price and cost-reimbursable arrangements are based on specific, objective criteria under the contracts.
Revenues on cost-reimbursable contracts are recognized by applying a factor to costs as incurred, such factor being determined by the contract provisions.
Revenues on unit-price contracts are recognized at the contractual selling prices of work completed and accepted by the client. Revenues on time and material
contracts are recognized at the contractual rates as the labor hours and direct expenses are incurred. Revenues from fixed price contracts are recognized as services
are provided, unless revenues are earned and obligations fulfilled in a different pattern. Generally, the Company’s contracts contain provisions for adjustments to
future pricing based upon changes in volumes, services and other market conditions, such as inflation. Revenues relating to such incentive or contingency
payments are recorded when the contingency is satisfied and the Company concludes the amounts are earned. The Company’s contracts typically span several
years and involve delivery of services in a number of different manners. Revenues recognized under these contracts do not require the use of significant estimates
that are susceptible to change.

Cost of operations are generally expensed as incurred and include personnel costs and related benefits, facility and equipment expenses, materials and
supplies, information technology expenses and other operating expenses and exclude depreciation and amortization expense. Transaction costs related to the set-up
of processes, personnel, engineering design and technology systems, both internal and external, in connection with certain large outsourcing contracts, are deferred
during the transition period and expensed evenly over the period services are provided. The deferred costs are specific internal costs or incremental external costs
directly related to transition or set-up activities necessary to enable the provided services. Generally, deferred amounts are protected in the event of early
termination of the contract and are monitored regularly for impairment. Impairment losses are recorded when projected undiscounted operating cash flows of the
related contract are not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of contract assets. Amounts billable to a client for transition or set-up activities are deferred and
recognized as revenue evenly over the period the services are provided.

The Company evaluates a client’s agreements for multiple elements and aggregation of individual contracts into a multiple element agreement. Management
believes the current contracts do not meet the criteria required for multiple element contract accounting. Each contract is negotiated independently on a stand-alone
basis, and prices are established based on operation-specific requirements. Furthermore, the Company’s clients typically choose their vendors and award business
at the conclusion of a competitive bidding process for each service. However, should a client award multiple contracts that the Company subsequently determines
are inter-dependent, the analysis of the value and timing of revenue recognition may subsequently change.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Billings in excess of revenues earned are deferred until the revenue recognition criteria are met, whereas revenues earned in excess of related billings are
accrued as unbilled contract receivables. Substantially all of the reported unbilled contract receivables at December 31, 2013 and 2012 relate to work performed in
the month prior to the balance sheet date, with a corresponding invoice being remitted to the client in the month subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Accounts Receivable and Unbilled Contract Receivables

Accounts receivable are stated at their invoiced amount, net of estimated allowance for doubtful accounts. Unbilled amounts for services rendered in the
respective period on open contracts but not yet billed to the clients are stated in accordance with anticipated to be billed amounts. The allowance for doubtful
accounts represents management’s best estimate at the reporting date of the amount of probable credit losses based on an assessment of specific invoices that
remain unpaid following normal client payment periods, historical collection experience with individual clients, existing economic conditions, and any specific
client collection issues that have been identified, such as a client’s bankruptcy. For each of the three years ending December 31, 2013, the Company did not write-
off any uncollectible reserves. The change in the allowance for doubtful accounts, recorded as a charge (benefit) was $(50), $(26) and $26 for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $162 and $212 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. See Note
3 for further disclosures related to the Company’s concentration of credit risk.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and consist of telecommunications components and parts and other supplies. Cost is determined by the
first-in, first-out method. Consideration is given to deterioration, obsolescence and other factors in evaluating estimated market values of inventory based on
management’s judgment and available information, which includes assumptions about market conditions, future demand and expected usage rates. Actual results
may vary from those estimates. See Note 4 for further disclosures related to the Company’s inventories.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are capitalized as permitted or required by applicable accounting standards, including replacements and improvements when cost
incurred for those purposes extend the useful life of the asset. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on capital assets is computed using
the straight-line method over the following useful lives:
 

Asset Class   Estimated Useful Life
Information system equipment and software   4 to 5 years
Machinery and equipment   5 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements   Lesser of lease term or 15 years
Office equipment   5 to 10 years

Management makes assumptions regarding future conditions in determining estimated useful lives and potential salvage values, and the Company
continually evaluates depreciable lives and salvage values of the Company’s equipment. These assumptions impact the amount of depreciation expense recognized
in the period and any gain or loss once the asset is disposed.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease term, whichever is shorter. When property or equipment is
sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included as a net amount in
operating expenses.

Management reviews the property and equipment for impairment when events or changes in business conditions indicate the carrying value of an asset
group may not be recoverable. An impairment of a group of assets classified as “held and used” exists if the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cash flows
expected is less than the carrying value of the asset group. If this measurement indicates a possible impairment, the Company compares the estimated fair value of
the asset to the net book value to measure the impairment charge, if any. If the criteria for classifying an asset as “held for sale” have been met, the Company
records the asset at the lower of carrying value or fair value, less estimated selling costs. See Note 5 for further disclosures related to the Company’s property and
equipment.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Internal Use Computer Software

Certain costs incurred in connection with the development of software used for internal purposes are capitalized subsequent to completing the preliminary
project stage. Such capitalized costs are included in property and equipment as part of computer software and are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of
not more than five years. Costs that are incurred in the preliminary stage of an internal-use computer software project are expensed as incurred. Once the
Company’s capitalization criteria have been met, direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining internal-use computer software are
capitalized. Unamortized computer software costs as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $18,121 and $18,158, respectively. Amortization expense was $5,979,
$5,243 and $3,656 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is carried at cost and is not amortized. Management’s policy is to evaluate indefinite-lived intangible assets and goodwill for possible impairment
at the beginning of the fourth quarter each year, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable.

The goodwill impairment test provides that the Company initially assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to then perform the more detailed two-step quantitative
goodwill impairment test. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. If, after assessing the totality of events or
circumstances, the Company determines that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then performing the
two-step impairment test is unnecessary and the goodwill is considered to be unimpaired. However, if based on the qualitative assessment the Company concludes
that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the Company will proceed with performing the two-step
quantitative impairment test.

The first step involves a comparison of the estimated fair value of each reporting unit with its respective carrying value. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, then the second step of the process involves a comparison of the implied fair value and carrying value of the
goodwill. If the carrying value of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess.

The estimated fair value is dependent upon the Company’s estimate of future discounted cash flows and other factors. Such estimates of future cash flows
include assumptions concerning future operating performance and economic conditions and may differ from actual future cash flows. Estimated future cash flows
are adjusted by an appropriate discount rate at the date of evaluation. The financial and credit market volatility directly impacts the fair value measurement through
the Company’s weighted average cost of capital that is used to determine the discount rate and market multiples used to value companies in New Breed’s industry.
Based on the qualitative assessment as described above, the Company has concluded its goodwill is not impaired. See Note 6 for further disclosures related to the
Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life (a trade name) is not amortized but assessed for impairment annually, or more frequently, when events or
changes in circumstances occur indicating that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying amount
exceeds its fair value. In testing for impairment, the Company has the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than
not that an impairment exists. If it is determined that it is not more likely than not that an impairment exists, a quantitative impairment test is not necessary. If the
Company concludes otherwise, a quantitative impairment test is performed.

As of December 31, 2013 all intangible assets with definite lives are fully amortized. Intangible assets with definite lives were amortized over their
estimated useful lives and were also reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicated that their carrying amount may not be realizable.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities into three broad levels. The following is a brief description of those three levels:
 

 •  Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 

 •  Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

 

 •  Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’s own assumptions.

As of December 31, 2013, none of the Company’s financial assets or liabilities were currently measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs.
The carrying amounts at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, unbilled contract receivables, income taxes
receivable and payable, other current assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair values because of the short maturity of those
instruments. The carrying amounts at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of the Company’s borrowings approximated their fair value.

Insurance Reserves

The Company uses a combination of insurance and self-insurance to provide for the potential liability for workers’ compensation, automobile and general
liability, the potential for loss of the Company’s clients’ products while in the Company’s possession, director and officer liability, network security and privacy,
employee health care benefits and other casualty and property risk. Liabilities associated with these risks are estimated, in part, by considering historical claims
experience, demographic factors, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions, including provisions for incurred but not reported losses. While management
believes the assumptions are appropriate, the estimated accruals for these liabilities could be significantly affected if future occurrences and claims differ from
these assumptions and historical trends.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates existing at the respective balance sheet dates. The
Company translates the results of its foreign operations at the average exchange rates during the respective periods. Translation adjustments resulting from
fluctuations in exchange rates are recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive income.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is estimated at the grant date based on the award’s fair value using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation formula. For service-
vested rewards, the fair value of each grant is recorded as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, generally the option’s vesting period.
For performance-vested awards, the expense is recognized when the achievement of the performance condition is considered probable. Forfeitures are estimated on
the date of grant and revised if actual or expected forfeiture activity differs materially from original estimates. See Note 13 for further discussion related to the
Company’s stock-based compensation agreements.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities,
using enacted statutory tax rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Changes in enacted tax rates are reflected in the tax provision as they occur. A valuation
allowance is recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period when the change is enacted.

The Company utilizes a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions (tax contingencies). The first step is to evaluate the tax
position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including
resolution of related appeals or litigation processes. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount which is more than 50% likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company includes interest and penalties related to the Company’s tax contingencies in income tax expense. See Note 8 for
further discussion related to the Company’s income taxes.

Segment Reporting

The Company applies the provisions of ASC Topic 280 Segment Reporting, which establishes accounting standards for segment reporting. The Company’s
chief operating decision-maker assesses performance and makes resource allocation decisions for the business as a single operating segment. Therefore, the
Company has only one reportable segment in accordance with this guidance. The Company has provided all enterprise wide disclosures required by this guidance
related to revenues from external customers derived from our principal groups of services as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2013    2012    2011  
Revenues by Service Category       
Reverse logistics and repair   $202,295    $190,630    $247,602  
Multi-channel distribution fulfillment    185,756     173,264     164,011  
Manufacturing support to assembly plants    126,614     113,272     94,737  
Service parts and aftermarket support    64,663     68,451     56,109  
Transportation management    7,595     3,046     2,999  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Net revenues   $586,923    $548,663    $565,458  
    

 

    

 

    

 

3. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND CASH BALANCES

The Company has business and credit risks concentrated in the telecommunications, aerospace and defense and media and entertainment industries. One
client in the telecommunications industry represented 31.2%, 37.0% and 49.3% of the Company’s consolidated net revenues for the years ended December, 31
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Additionally, two clients in the aerospace and defense industry represented 18.5% and 9.2%, 19.0% and 10.0% and 16.8% and
6.6%, of the Company’s consolidated net revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Finally, one client in the entertainment
and media industry represented 9.9%, 6.9% and 5.1% of the Company’s consolidated net revenues for the years ended December, 31 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. These four clients accounted for $55,222 and $24,902 of trade accounts receivable and unbilled contract receivables, respectively, at December 31,
2013 and $56,485 and $28,759 at December 31, 2012. The Company currently does not foresee a credit risk associated with these receivables. Concentrations of
credit risk with respect to the remaining receivables, beyond amounts provided for collection losses, are limited due to the generally short payment terms and client
dispersion across various geographic areas. Consistent with industry practices, the Company does not generally require collateral from clients to reduce the risk of
credit losses.

At certain times during the year, the Company’s cash balances exceed its banks’ FDIC insurable limits. Amounts exceeding FDIC limits at December 31,
2013 and 2012 were $76,662 and $1,044, respectively. The Company has not experienced any losses due to cash balances exceeding these limits.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 
4. INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories consisted of the following:
 

   December 31,  
   2013    2012  
Components and parts   $4,364    $2,114  
Supplies on hand    1,094     1,259  

    
 

    
 

   5,458     3,373  
Less: Reserve for obsolete inventory    112     136  

    
 

    
 

  $5,346    $3,237  
    

 

    

 

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment consisted of the following:
 

   December 31,  
   2013    2012  
Information systems equipment and software   $110,348    $100,213  
Machinery and equipment    69,498     65,006  
Leasehold improvements    25,712     25,041  
Office equipment    7,791     7,692  
Construction in progress    1,228     2,528  

    
 

    
 

   214,577     200,480  
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization    130,240     109,811  

    
 

    
 

  $ 84,337    $ 90,669  
    

 

    

 

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was $29,918, $27,143 and $23,115 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. As a result of a change in the estimate useful life of certain equipment and leasehold improvements, the Company recorded $1,969 of
incremental depreciation expense, a $1,191 decrease in net income and a $364 decrease in net loss attributable to common stockholders, in the year ended
December 31, 2013. As a result of a change in the estimate useful life of certain leasehold improvements, the Company recorded approximately $2,100 of
incremental depreciation expense, a $1,271 decrease in net income and a $1,271 increase in net loss attributable to common stockholders, in the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Maintenance and repair expense was $8,562, $7,838 and $7,687, for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 
6. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The primary components of the Company’s intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization follow:
 

   
Gross Carrying

Amount    
Accumulated
Amortization   

Net Carrying
Amount  

Year ended December 31, 2013       
Client intangibles   $ 46,100    $ 46,100    $ —    
Indefinite-lived trade names    3,600     —       3,600  
Goodwill    62,357     —       62,357  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total   $ 112,057    $ 46,100    $ 65,957  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Year ended December 31, 2012       
Client intangibles   $ 46,100    $ 45,158    $ 942  
Indefinite-lived trade names    3,600     —       3,600  
Goodwill    62,357     —       62,357  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total   $ 112,057    $ 41,158    $ 66,899  
    

 

    

 

    

 

The amortization expense for intangibles subject to amortization was $942, $3,769 and $3,768 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. There were no impairments for any of the periods presented. As of December 31, 2013, all definite-lived intangible assets are fully amortized.

7. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:
 

   December 31,  
   2013    2012  
Accrued payroll and related expenses   $16,136    $16,625  
Self-insurance reserves    3,764     3,443  
Accrued interest    1,386     2,557  
Other    9,579     7,830  

    
 

    
 

Total accrued liabilities   $30,865    $30,455  
    

 

    

 

8. INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxes are summarized as follows:
 
   Year ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
Current:     

Federal   $11,098   $ 4,087   $ 9,001  
State and other    2,183    (2,628)   5,764  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total current    13,281    1,459    14,765  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Deferred:     
Federal    (1,526)   3,296    6,667  
State    (75)   464    706  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total deferred    (1,601)   3,760    7,373  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Provision for income taxes   $11,680   $ 5,219   $22,138  
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

The following is a reconciliation of U.S. federal statutory tax, at a rate of 35%, to effective income tax expense:
 

   Year ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
U.S. federal statutory tax   $10,112   $ 8,779   $18,745  
Increase (reduction) in income tax expense resulting from:     

State income taxes, net of federal benefit    1,244    1,464    4,372  
Domestic production activities deduction    (869)   (3,935)   —    
State tax return amendments    —      (3,111)   —    
Establishment of uncertain tax positions, net    622    1,844    152  
Other permanent items    175    182    197  
Increase in valuation allowance    —      28    61  
Other, net    396    (32)   (1,389) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Provision for income taxes   $11,680   $ 5,219   $22,138  
    

 

   

 

   

 

During 2013, the Company recorded a benefit of $869 for the domestic production activities deduction for the 2013 tax period. During 2012, the Company
recorded a benefit of $3,935 for the domestic production activities deduction for the 2012 and prior tax periods for which the prior federal returns were amended.
In addition, during 2012 the Company recorded $3,111 of benefit attributable to prior year state income tax positions for which the prior returns were amended
primarily related to a combination of corporate restructuring and related transfer pricing matters. All amendments relate to tax analysis performed in 2012 and
represent a change in estimate in the income tax accounts. The Company also recorded $1,844 of uncertain tax position reserves primarily attributable to these
items, of which $1,481 relates to the amendment of prior year federal and state returns. During 2011, the Company recorded a reduction in the provision for
income taxes of $977 (included in Other, net) to correct previously recorded deferred tax liabilities attributed to property and equipment.

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) consisted of the following:
 

   December 31,  
   2013   2012  
Current deferred tax asset (liability):    

Accrued liabilities   $ 1,601   $ 1,548  
Workers’ compensation reserves—short term    132    499  
Prepaid insurance    (1,093)   (1,080) 
Other    218    252  

    
 

   
 

Net current deferred tax assets    858    1,219  
Non-current deferred tax asset (liability):    

Property and equipment and contract costs    (24,488)   (26,238) 
Amortizable intangibles    (1,422)   (1,794) 
State net operating loss carryforwards    245    245  
Workers’ compensation reserves—long term    866    712  
Stock-based compensation    622    767  
State net operating loss valuation allowance    (245)   (245) 
Other    1,984    2,187  

    
 

   
 

Net non-current deferred tax liability    (22,438)   (24,366) 
    

 
   

 

Net deferred tax liability   $(21,580)  $(23,147) 
    

 

   

 

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had $245 of state net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future state taxable income. Such
carryforwards expire at various dates between 2017 and 2022.
 

15



NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had $2,618 of gross unrecognized income tax benefits, including accrued interest. This amount includes $2,263 of
unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would reduce the Company’s effective tax rate, excluding $90 of accrued interest. The Company does not expect its
unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly in the next 12 months.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized income tax benefits is presented below:
 

   2013   2012    2011  
Balance at January 1   $1,941   $ 120    $—    

Increases related to current year tax positions    701    340     120  
Increases related to prior year tax positions    79    1,481     —    
Decreases related to settlement with tax authorities    (193)   —       —    

    
 

   
 

    
 

Balance at December 31   $2,528   $1,941    $120  
    

 

   

 

    

 

The Company’s policy is to record interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters as a component of income taxes. During the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recognized $35, $23 and $32, respectively, for interest and penalties classified as income tax expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had a total of $90 of accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits. The Company does not expect its unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly in the next 12 months.

The Company files a U.S. federal income tax return and income tax returns in various state jurisdictions. The statute of limitations remains open for federal
and certain state income tax examinations for tax years 2008 through 2013.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:
 

   December 31,  
   2013    2012  
Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan(1)   $288,356    $297,110  
Less: Current portion    —       3,000  

    
 

    
 

  $288,356    $294,110  
    

 

    

 

 
(1) Borrowing is net of unamortized original issue discount of $2,394 and $2,890 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

In 2012, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Credit Facility (the “Senior Secured Credit Facility”) that provides for (i) a $300,000 term loan (the
“Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan”) and (ii) a revolving loan facility with a $50,000 aggregate loan commitment amount available, which includes a
$20,000 sub-facility for letters of credit and a $10,000 swingline sub-limit. Net proceeds from the Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan were $297,000, with
an original issue discount of $3,000. The Company incurred $5,518 of costs in connection with the Senior Secured Credit Facility that are classified as “Other
assets” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The deferred financing fees and the original issue discount are being amortized to interest expense
utilizing the effective interest method over the term of the Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan. The revolving credit facility is available for working capital
and other general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2013, no amounts were outstanding under the revolving credit agreement (without giving effect to the
outstanding but undrawn letters of credit on such date).
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Term loan borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan bear interest, at the Company’s option, at the Alternate Base Rate (“ABR”)
plus an applicable margin for an ABR Loan (as defined in the credit agreement), or the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) (subject to a floor of 1.25%)
plus an applicable margin over an interest period term of one, two, three or six months for a Eurodollar Loan (as defined in the credit agreement). The ABR is
defined as the higher of the (1) Prime Rate, (2) Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% or (3) one-month LIBOR plus 1.0%. The applicable margin with respect to term loan
borrowings is 3.75% per annum for an ABR Loan and 4.75% per annum for a Eurodollar Loan. Revolving loan borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit
Facility bear interest, at the Company’s option, equal to the ABR plus an applicable margin for an ABR Loan, or LIBOR plus an applicable margin over an interest
period term of one, two, three or six months for a Eurodollar Loan. The applicable margin for revolving loan borrowings varies between 2.25% and 2.75% per
annum for an ABR Loan and between 3.25% and 3.75% per annum for a Eurodollar Loan, depending upon the Company’s Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio (as
defined in the credit agreement). At December 31, 2013, the weighted average interest rate for the debt outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Facility
Term B Loan was 6.0%. Including debt issuance costs and original issue discounts, the Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan has an effective annualized
interest rate of approximately 6.4% as of December 31, 2013.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan matures on October 1, 2019. Quarterly principal payments of $750 are required on the Senior Secured
Credit Facility Term B Loan beginning March 31, 2013, with a final installment of $280,500 due on the maturity date. The Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B
Loan contains provisions that require mandatory prepayments based upon a percentage of excess cash flow (as defined in the credit agreement), beginning with the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. The percentage varies between 0% and 50% of excess cash flow depending upon the Company’s Senior Secured Net
Leverage Ratio. The Senior Secured Credit Facility also allows the Company to make voluntary prepayments of the Senior Secure Credit Facility Term B Loan at
any time without penalty, with such prepayments to be applied against future scheduled principal installments at the discretion of the Company. For the year ended
December, 31, 2013 the Company’s excess cash flow mandatory prepayment was $5,218, however the Company voluntarily prepaid $7,000 and therefore, as of
December 31, 2013, no additional mandatory prepayments are required. The revolving loan facility under the Senior Secured Credit Facility matures on October 1,
2017. No principal payments or commitment reductions are due on the revolving loan facility until the maturity date.

There are no financial covenant requirements under the Senior Secured Credit Facility for the Senior Secure Credit Facility Term B Loan. The revolving
loan facility requires the Company to comply with a Consolidated Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio at the end of each fiscal quarter, with such compliance
testing to be performed only if the sum of outstanding revolving loans and undrawn letters of credit on the last day of the respective quarter exceeds $7,500. The
Senior Secured Credit Facility includes customary restrictions (subject to certain exceptions) governing, among other things, the Company’s ability to create liens
on assets, incur additional indebtedness, make investments or acquisitions, engage in mergers or consolidations, dispose of assets, pay dividends (other than
intercompany dividends) or make other restricted payments, engage in certain lines of business, engage in transactions with affiliates, enter into certain types of
agreements related to the Company’s subsidiaries, prepay or amend the terms of subordinated indebtedness, or change the Company’s fiscal year.

The Company’s ability to pay cash dividends to our common stockholders is generally restricted under the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facility to the
sum of (a) approximately $4,500, representing the unpaid portion of the $170,000 special equityholder distribution permitted under the Senior Secured Credit
Facility, (b) the aggregate amount of net proceeds received, and not otherwise applied to make required prepayments or certain permitted restricted payments, from
issuances of or contributions in respect of qualified equity interests (as defined in the credit agreement), and (c) so long as our Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio
(as defined in the credit agreement) is less than or equal to 2.9 to 1.0 on a pro forma basis, an additional distribution amount. The additional distribution amount, in
turn, is calculated as $35,000 plus the sum of cumulative, annual (beginning with the year ended December 31, 2013) excess cash flow (as defined in our credit
agreement), in each case only to the extent not otherwise applied to make required prepayments or certain permitted restricted payments.

Amounts outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets. The Company’s loans and other
obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility are guaranteed, subject to specified limitations, by the Company’s present direct and indirect domestic
subsidiaries and any future domestic subsidiaries that may be added under the credit agreement.
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2010 Credit Facility

During 2010, the Company executed a credit facility with a consortium of banks (the “2010 Credit Facility”). The credit facility provided for (i) a $145,000
term loan and (ii) a revolving loan facility with a $50,000 aggregate loan commitment amount available, which included a $15,000 sub-facility for letters of credit
and a $5,000 swingline sub-limit. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, no amounts were outstanding under the revolving credit facility.

Interest on the 2010 Credit Facility term loan was payable, at the Company’s option, at the Base Rate plus an applicable margin for a Base Rate Loan (as
defined in the credit agreement), or the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin over an interest period term of one, two, three or six
months for a Eurodollar Rate Loan (as defined in the 2010 credit agreement). The Base Rate was defined as the higher of (1) Prime Rate, (2) Federal Funds Rate
plus 0.5% or (3) one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.0%. Until January 1, 2011, the applicable margin was 2.25% per annum for a Base Rate Loan and 3.25% per annum
for a Eurodollar Rate Loan. After January 1, 2011, the applicable margin varied between 1.75% and 2.75% for a Base Rate Loan and between 2.75% and 3.75%
for a Eurodollar Rate Loan, depending upon the Company’s Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2010 credit agreement). The Company made
prepayments in 2011 totaling $14,500 and retired the remaining debt in 2012. The retirement of the 2011 Credit Facility was accounted for as an extinguishment of
debt. Accordingly, upon retirement the Company recorded $1,979 of unamortized debt issuance costs as a component of interest expense.

Letters of Credit

The Company had outstanding letters of credit (i) to satisfy self-insured workers’ compensation security deposit requirements in the amount of $4,545 at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and (ii) to guarantee performance under real estate operating lease agreements in the amount of $896 at December 31, 2013 and
2012. These letters of credit have one-year renewal terms and expire at various times within the next twelve months.

Debt Maturity

The Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan matures as follows:
 

Year ending December 31,     
2014   $ —    
2015    —    
2016    2,750  
2017    3,000  
2018    3,000  
2019    282,000  

    
 

Total   $290,750  
    

 

10. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

The Company has a contributory 401(k) profit sharing plan that covers all eligible employees as defined in the plan agreement. Employer contributions to
the plan are at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Employer contributions to the plan were $1,019, $948 and $896 for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company leases all warehouse, distribution, office and other operating facilities, the majority of which are in connection with a specific client program
and facility. Where facilities are substantially dedicated to a single client and the lease is with an independent property owner, management attempts to align lease
terms with the expected duration of the underlying client program. In most cases, facility leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases in the ordinary course
of business where possible, and for certain of the Company’s programs the relevant client contracts provide for the recovery of certain occupancy costs, including
rent, during the term of the program. For leases that contain built-in pre-determined rent escalation, rent holidays or rent concessions, rent expense is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

The Company also leases a significant portion of the equipment used in clients’ programs. These equipment leases generally are shorter in duration than
facilities leases and have fair value purchase options as well as renewal options, generally on a one-year basis.

Total rental expense consisted of the following:
 

   Year ended December 31,  
   2013    2012    2011  
Equipment   $15,230    $17,091    $17,168  
Facility    33,647     32,754     29,460  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total   $48,877    $49,845    $46,628  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Future minimum rental payments required under operating leases having initial or remaining non-cancellable lease terms in excess of one year at
December 31, 2013 are as follows:
 

Years ending December 31,   Facilities    Equipment   Total  
2014   $ 32,731    $ 9,384    $ 42,115  
2015    27,085     6,860     33,945  
2016    23,092     3,927     27,019  
2017    18,278     1,658     19,936  
2018    12,054     415     12,469  

Thereafter    13,896     100     13,996  
    

 
    

 
    

 

Total   $127,136    $ 22,344    $149,480  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Litigation

The Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims and disputes in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, based on the advice of
counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company leased office space from three entities owned and controlled by the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer under non-cancellable lease agreements that expire at various dates in 2019. The Company recorded payments associated with these lease agreements in
the amount of $1,582, $1,363, and $966 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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13. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In June 2005, the Company adopted the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”) providing for the issuance of up to 149,425 options to purchase the
Company’s common stock. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers the Plan, whereby it determines the exercise price of options, the
number of options to be issued and the vesting period. As specified in the 2005 Plan, the exercise price per share shall not be less than the fair market value on the
effective date of grant, the term of an option cannot exceed 10 years and the options generally vest ratably over one to four years from the date of the grant. The
Company has a policy of issuing new shares to satisfy option exercises.

The 94,950 options granted in 2005, of which 77,850 are outstanding, are exercisable upon the completion of the vesting period. All other options granted
are exercisable only upon the completion of the vesting period and the occurrence of a performance condition, a Liquidity Event as defined in the 2005 Plan. The
2005 Plan defines a Liquidity Event as a sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or the sale, transfer or other
disposition, whether by merger or otherwise, of more than 50% of the capital stock held by Warburg Pincus on the date of each respective common stock option
grant to any third-party that is not an affiliate of Warburg Pincus (and at a minimum price). Additionally, should a Liquidity Event occur, 50% of the holder’s then
outstanding unvested options will vest and all vested options will then become exercisable. However, the holder must exercise all vested options by March 15th of
the calendar year following the Liquidity Event, or these exercisable options will otherwise expire.

The Board of Directors determines grant date fair market value of the Company’s stock. The Company obtains an outside contemporaneous valuation to
assist the Board of Directors in the determination of the estimated fair market value of the Company’s common stock. The dates of the contemporaneous valuations
have not always coincided with the date of the option grant. In such instances, management reviewed the most recent contemporaneous valuation of the
Company’s common stock and assessed additional objective and subjective factors, both internal and external, that were relevant and may have changed the
estimated fair market value of the common stock from the date of the contemporaneous valuation through the date of the option grant. The additional factors
considered when determining any changes in fair value between the most recent contemporaneous valuation and the grant date included our operating and financial
performance, including forecasts of future operating results, current business conditions, and the market performance of comparable publicly traded companies. If
such factors were noted that were believed to have a material impact on the grant date fair value of the common stock, management would perform an internal
valuation of the fair value of the Company’s common stock to reflect these additional factors. For each of the common stock options granted during 2012 and 2011,
no such factors were noted between the contemporaneous valuation date and the date of grant that would have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the
fair market value of its common stock. As such, the fair market value at each grant date equaled the most recently obtained contemporaneous valuation. In January
2013, the Board of Directors approved 11,050 stock option grants with an exercise price of $221.65 per share, the fair market value of the Company’s stock on
such date. The option grants were not communicated to the employee recipients until April 25, 2013. Accordingly, April 25, 2013 was used as the measurement
date and the fair value of the Company’s common stock on such date was used in the initial fair value calculation of the option awards. In December 2013, the
Board of Directors resolved to modify these option grants, primarily to clarify the definition of a Liquidity Event and other terms within the stock option grant
agreements. Accordingly, December 31, 2103 was used as the measurement date to calculate the fair value of the stock option awards. The summary of fair value
assumptions and other disclosures below reflect only those used in the December 31, 2013 measurement. There were no other option grants in 2013.

The Company recognizes the grant date fair value of stock options issued over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. However,
in accordance with ASC Topic 718, recognition of compensation costs for an award with a performance condition is based on the probable outcome of that
performance condition. A specified event, such as a Liquidity Event, generally is not considered to be a probable occurrence until it is effective because the timing
of such event is unknown and its occurrence is generally outside a company’s control. As a result, the Company has determined it is not probable the Liquidity
Event performance condition will be achieved, and accordingly no compensation cost has been recognized relating to the performance based stock options.
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton formula to estimate the fair value of its stock-based payments. Using the Black-Scholes-Merton option
valuation model and the assumptions listed below, the Company recorded $0, $0 and $235 in compensation expense with corresponding tax benefits of $0, $0 and
$93 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The volatility assumption used in the valuation for options granted was determined by analyzing the volatilities of comparable companies that are in a
similar industry and stage of development as the Company. The expected life of options granted for all periods was calculated by taking the average of the vesting
term and contractual life of the option grant while also taking into consideration potential liquidity events (as defined in the 2005 Plan) that may impact the
exercisability of the stock-based awards.
 

   Year ended December 31,  
   2013   2012    2011  
Expected dividend yield    None    None     None  
Risk-free interest rate    1.27%   0.81%    0.14 - 0.49% 
Expected volatility    50.0%   35.0%    32.50% 
Expected term (in years)    4.0    4.0     4.0  
Weighted-average fair value at grant date   $189.89   $98.73     $45.87  

The following table summarizes option activity from January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2013:
 

   Shares    

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price    

Estimated
Fair Value

Per Common
Share    

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term
(Years)    

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value  
Outstanding at January 1, 2011    106,396    $ 74.04    $ 331.42     4.90    $ 26,532  

Granted    7,850     336.56        
Exercised    —       —          
Forfeited or canceled    2,500     186.34        

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at December 31, 2011    111,746     89.97     328.25     4.24    $ 21,361  
Granted    16,700     345.40        
Exercised    —       —          
Forfeited or canceled    3,250     216.70        

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at December 31, 2012    125,196     120.75     221.65     3.95    $ 15,570  
Granted    11,050     221.65        
Exercised    7,000     56.54        
Forfeited or canceled    6,971     106.26        

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at December 31, 2013    122,275    $134.84    $ 350.92     3.64    $ 26,421  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Options vested and exercisable at December 31, 2013    77,850    $ 56.54    $ 350.92     1.47    $ 22,859  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable represents the total pretax intrinsic value that would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders exercised their options as of December 31, 2013. The pretax intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the $350.92 fair
value of the Company’s common stock as of December 31, 2013 and the exercise price of each common stock option, multiplied by the number of options where
the exercise price exceeds the fair value. The total intrinsic value of shares exercised during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $2,248, $0
and $0. The total fair value of the shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $1,188, $306 and $182, respectively.
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In 2013, 2012, and 2011 the Company granted 11,050, 16,700 and 7,850 common stock options, respectively. These options are exercisable only upon
occurrence of a Liquidity Event (as defined above), a performance condition, which as of December 31, 2013, management has determined is not considered
probable. Accordingly, no expense has been recognized for these performance-based stock options.

As of December 31, 2013, there were 23,939 options that have vested but are not exercisable until the occurrence of the defined Liquidity Event.
Additionally, there were 20,486 non-vested performance based stock options for which no compensation expense will be recognized until the defined Liquidity
Event is effective. If the Liquidity Event were to have occurred as of December 31, 2013, 50% of the then outstanding unvested options, or 10,243 options, would
have immediately vested and all vested options would be exercisable. The Company would have recognized $2,706 of compensation expense upon the occurrence
of the Liquidity Event with $984 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the remaining non-vested stock options to be recognized over the subsequent
2.8 years, the weighted average vesting period of the remaining non-vested options.

Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, upon consummation of an initial public offering, the Company’s chief executive officer will receive
options to purchase 4% of the Company’s outstanding common stock, determined as of the day immediately preceding the consummating of the offering at an
exercise price equal to the per share price to the public of the common stock in the offering. The options will be subject to the terms and conditions of the
Company’s then applicable stock incentive plan and shall contain the standard vesting provisions applicable to the Company’s other senior executives.

14. SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On June 22, 2005, the Company received $44,634 in exchange for issuing 44,634 shares of Series A Preferred Stock. Effective June 22, 2010 but prior to
July 1, 2010, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock could have required the Company to redeem any or all shares of the Series A Preferred Stock at a price
equal to the Series A Accreted Amount, which was defined as the original issuance price plus 7% per annum, compounded annually from date of issuance. On
July 1, 2010, the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation was amended and the redemptive feature of the Series A Preferred Stock was removed. Accordingly, the
Series A Preferred Stock is included as a component of stockholders’ equity.

The following is a summary of the rights, preferences and terms of the Company’s outstanding Series A Preferred Stock:

Conversion

Each share of Series A Preferred Stock, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time and from time to time, and without the payment of additional
consideration by the holder thereof, is convertible into fully paid and non-assessable shares of the Company’s common stock. Each share of Series A Preferred
Stock was convertible into 17.68659356 shares of common stock at December 31, 2013. Future sales of equity at prices below the conversion price and other
potentially dilutive events could result in adjustments to the number of shares of common stock into which the preferred stock is convertible.

Automatic conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock into fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock, without the payment of additional
consideration by the holders thereof, would occur immediately upon the closing of the sale of the Company’s common stock in a firm commitment, underwritten
public offering registered under the Securities Act of 1933 in which the pre-money valuation of the common stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock is at least three times the conversion price and in which the aggregate proceeds from such public offering are at least $60 million.

Dividends

The Series A Preferred Stock is not entitled to receive any preference dividends. However, the Company may not declare or pay any dividends on any shares
of stock unless the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding simultaneously receive a dividend on a pro rata basis as if the Series A Preferred Stock
has been converted into common shares of the Company.
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Voting

Each holder of the Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which such holder’s
shares are convertible on the record date, voting together with the common stock holders as one class.

Liquidation

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding are entitled to receive
out of the assets of the Company legally available for distribution to its stockholders, before any payments to the common stock holders, an amount per share equal
to the Series A Liquidation Preference, which is defined as the greater of (i) the original issuance price or (ii) the amount that would otherwise be distributed to the
holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock in a liquidation if the original issuance price was not paid and the holders converted the Series A Preferred Stock into
shares of common stock. If, upon any liquidation, the assets of the Company are insufficient to pay the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock the full amounts to
which they are entitled, the holders will share ratably in any distribution of assets according to the amounts which would be payable for the shares if all amounts
were paid in full. In the event that assets of the Company remain legally available for distribution to stockholders after payment in full of the Series A Liquidation
Preference, such assets will be distributed to the common stockholders on a pro rata basis. The liquidation value at December 31, 2013 was $44,634.

15. EQUITY AND OPTION-HOLDER DISTRIBUTION

In 2012, a special dividend was paid to the Company’s common stock holders and Series A Preferred Stock holders. Each common share and common share
equivalent for the Series A Preferred Stock, on an as converted basis, received $130.24 per share, with a total amount paid of $147,958. The dividend was recorded
in stockholders’ equity at the time of declaration with amounts recorded to retained earnings and to capital in excess of par to reduce these balances to zero, with
the remaining amount recorded within retained earnings as a deficit.

Additionally, in 2012 a management option-holder distribution of $17,564 was paid. This payment was treated as additional compensation and was included
in 2012 as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses.

16. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 follow:
 

   Year ended December 31,  
   2013    2012    2011  
Cash paid during the year for:       

Interest   $19,908    $5,631    $5,324  
Income taxes, net of refunds    8,815     5,946     9,670  

At December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company had $2,171, $2,342 and $1,502 respectively, of unpaid purchases of capital equipment included in
accounts payable. Amounts reported as unpaid purchases are recorded as cash outflows from investing activities for purchases of property and equipment and
contract costs in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the period they are paid. At December 31, 2013, the Company had $920 of outstanding receivables,
included in prepaid and other current assets, due from the sale of certain capital equipment. The receivable was collected in January 2014. Amounts reported as
cash inflows from the sale of equipment in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows reflect proceeds in the period they are received.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 
17. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2013-02 (ASU 2013-02), which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 220,
Comprehensive Income. The objective of ASU 2013-02 is to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The
amendments in ASU 2013-02 seek to attain that objective by requiring an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety to net
income. For other amounts that are not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to
cross-reference other disclosures required under GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. This would be the case when a portion of the amount
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a balance sheet account (for example, inventory) instead of directly to income or
expense in the same reporting period. The Company adopted this guidance, prospectively, beginning January 1, 2013. The adoption of this guidance did not have a
material impact upon our financial position or results of operations.

Income Taxes

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2013-11 (ASU 2013-11), which updated the guidance in ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes.
The amendments in ASU 2013-11 generally provide guidance for the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar
tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists at the reporting date. The guidance requires an unrecognized tax benefit to be presented as a decrease in a deferred tax
asset where a net operating loss, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists and certain criteria are met. The Company will adopt this guidance,
prospectively, beginning January 1, 2014 and this guidance is consistent with our present practice.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

 
   

June 30,
2014   

December 31,
2013  

ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 75,566   $ 75,289  
Trade accounts receivable, net    77,373    79,795  
Unbilled contract receivables    36,650    36,405  
Inventories    2,839    5,346  
Deferred income taxes    1,848    858  
Income taxes receivable    —      1,518  
Prepaid and other current assets    8,186    9,398  

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    202,462    208,609  
Property and equipment, net    83,266    84,337  
Goodwill    62,357    62,357  
Intangible assets    3,600    3,600  
Other assets    10,912    13,284  

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $362,597   $ 372,187  
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable   $ 18,580   $ 33,915  
Accrued liabilities    29,476    30,865  
Income taxes payable    3,941    —    

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    51,997    64,780  
Long-term debt    288,565    288,356  
Other long-term liabilities    9,536    8,188  
Deferred income taxes    20,330    22,438  

    
 

   
 

Total liabilities    370,428    383,762  
    

 
   

 

Commitments and contingencies    
Stockholders’ deficit:    

Series A convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value, $1,000 stated value; 100,000 shares authorized, 44,634 shares issued
and outstanding at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively    44,634    44,634  

Common stock, $.01 par value; 1,500,000 shares authorized, 353,659 issued and outstanding at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively    4    4  

Capital in excess of par value    1,175    1,175  
Accumulated deficit    (53,635)   (57,395) 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income    (9)   7  

    
 

   
 

Total stockholders’ deficit    (7,831)   (11,575) 
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $362,597   $ 372,187  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

 
   

Six Months Ended
June 30,  

   2014   2013  
Net revenue   $ 290,117   $279,603  
Operating expenses:    

Cost of operations    242,439    222,190  
Depreciation and amortization    14,581    15,872  
Selling, general and administrative    16,384    15,606  

    
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    273,404    253,668  
    

 
   

 

Operating income    16,713    25,935  
Interest expense, net    (9,581)   (9,803) 

    
 

   
 

Income before income taxes    7,132    16,132  
Provision for income taxes    3,372    6,251  

    
 

   
 

Net income    3,760    9,881  
Undistributed earnings attributable to Series A Preferred Stock    2,597    6,859  

    
 

   
 

Net income attributable to common stockholders   $ 1,163   $ 3,022  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands)

 
   

Six Months Ended
June 30,  

   2014   2013  
Net income   $3,760   $9,881  
Other comprehensive income (loss):    

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of related taxes    (16)   (13) 
    

 
   

 

Total comprehensive income   $3,744   $9,868  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit
(in thousands, except share data)

 
   

Series A
Convertible
Preferred

Stock  

  Common Stock    Capital in
Excess of Par

Value  

  
Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated
Deficit)  

 
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 Total
Stockholders’

Deficit       Shares    Amount       
Balances, January 1, 2013   $ 44,634     346,659    $ 3    $ —      $ (74,607)  $ —     $ (29,970) 

Net income    —       —       —       —       17,212    —      17,212  
Foreign currency translation adjustment    —       —       —       —       —      7    7  
Exercise of common stock options    —       7,000     1     396     —      —      397  
Cash dividend paid to stockholders    —       —       —       779     —      —      779  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Balances, December 31, 2013    44,634     353,659     4     1,175     (57,395)   7    (11,575) 
Net income    —       —       —       —       3,760    —      3,760  
Foreign currency translation adjustment    —       —       —       —       —      (16)   (16) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Balances, June 30, 2014   $ 44,634     353,659    $ 4    $ 1,175    $ (53,635)  $ (9)  $ (7,831) 
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

 
   

Six Months Ended
June 30,  

   2014   2013  
Cash flows from operating activities:    

Net income   $ 3,760   $ 9,881  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Non-cash items:    
Depreciation and amortization    14,581    15,872  
Non-cash interest expense    613    640  
Non-cash rent expense    500    (34) 
Deferred income taxes    (3,098)   (2,747) 
Loss on disposal of equipment    11    —    

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Trade accounts receivable    2,422    2,786  
Unbilled contract receivables    (245)   5,233  
Inventories    2,507    (2,072) 
Prepaid and other current assets    292    1,420  
Other assets    1,095    (833) 
Accounts payable    (15,393)   (14,625) 
Accrued liabilities    (789)   2,020  
Income taxes payable    5,459    9,650  
Deferred revenue    (600)   2,206  
Other long-term liabilities    848    507  

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    11,963    29,904  
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from investing activities:    
Purchases of property and equipment and contract costs    (12,659)   (11,991) 
Receipt of deposits    13    123  
Proceeds from the sale of equipment    960    —    

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (11,686)   (11,868) 
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from financing activities:    
Repayments of Senior Secured Credit Facility    —      (1,500) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in financing activities    —      (1,500) 
    

 
   

 

Net increase (decrease) in cash    277    16,536  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year    75,289    56,166  

    
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 75,566   $ 72,702  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

New Breed Holding Company (“New Breed” or the “Company”), through its subsidiaries, provides specialized logistics and comprehensive supply chain
management solutions to large multi-national corporations and government agencies. Drawing on a combination of industry expertise, functional capabilities and
technology, New Breed designs, implements and executes customized supply chain solutions to help companies manage mission-critical processes, reduce
operating costs and achieve competitive advantage. New Breed seeks long-term, multifaceted relationships with its clients, providing solutions that improve their
business process by transforming their supply chains. The Company conducts operations principally in the United States.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial statements. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP
for a complete set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto of the Company. In the opinion
of management, these unaudited financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, considered necessary for a fair
presentation. The amounts presented in the unaudited balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 were derived from the audited balance sheet as of that date. Interim
results are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other interim period or for a full fiscal year. The Company has evaluated subsequent
events through August 8, 2014, the date at which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. Such judgments affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. On an on-going basis, the
Company reviews its estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events, actions that the Company
may undertake in the future and various other assumptions that the Company believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is the effect of foreign currency translations, net of related taxes. Comprehensive income
totaled $3,744 and $9,868 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of funds set aside and restricted for specific payments. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively, the Company has restricted cash of $3,151 and $2,402 included in prepaid and other current assets. The balance in restricted cash at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 represents funds set aside and used to fund healthcare claims for employees who are covered by the McNamara-O’Hara Service Contract Act
(SCA) as the Company is self-insured for such claims. These claims are paid by a third party insurance provider.

Operating Leases

The Company leases all warehouse, distribution, office and other operating facilities, the majority of which are in connection with a specific client program
and facility. Where facilities are substantially dedicated to a single client and the lease is with an independent property owner, management attempts to align lease
terms with the expected duration of the underlying client program. In most cases, facility leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases in the ordinary course
of business where possible, and for certain of the Company’s programs the relevant client contracts provide for the recovery of certain occupancy costs, including
rent, during the term of the program. For leases that contain built-in pre-determined rent escalation, rent holidays or rent concessions, rent expense is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

The Company also leases a significant portion of the equipment used in clients’ programs. These equipment leases generally are shorter in duration than
facilities leases and have fair value purchase options as well as renewal options, generally on a one-year basis. At June 30, 2014 the Company had provided
irrevocable notification to purchase $3,300 of equipment under various operating leases. These assets will be purchased at various dates in September and October
2014.

3. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND CASH BALANCES

The Company has business and credit risks concentrated in the telecommunications, aerospace and defense and media and entertainment industries. One
client in the telecommunications industry represented 28.5% and 33.8% of the Company’s consolidated net revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Additionally, two clients in the aerospace and defense industry represented 20.9% and 9.4% of the Company’s consolidated net revenues for the
six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, these two clients in the aerospace and defense industry represented 19.3%
and 9.5%, respectively, of the Company’s consolidated net revenues. Finally, one client in the entertainment and media industry represented 12.4% and 7.0% of the
Company’s consolidated net revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment consisted of the following:
 

   
June 30,

2014    
December 31,

2013  
Information systems equipment and software   $114,826    $ 110,348  
Machinery and equipment    71,692     69,498  
Leasehold improvements    25,970     25,712  
Office equipment    7,898     7,791  
Construction in progress    4,681     1,228  

    
 

    
 

   225,067     214,577  
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization    141,801     130,240  

    
 

    
 

  $ 83,266    $ 84,337  
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was $13,667 and $14,076 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company had $2,213 and $1,580, respectively, of unpaid purchases of capital equipment included in accounts payable. Amounts
reported as unpaid purchases are recorded as cash outflows from investing activities for purchases of property and equipment and contract costs in the consolidated
statements of cash flows in the period they are paid.

5. INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate was 47.3% and 38.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In the six months ended
June 30, 2014, the Company recorded income tax expense of $758 related to a change in estimate of prior period uncertain tax reserves. This was recorded
discretely during the period due to a change in the interpretation of law with respect to a state transfer pricing position by a state taxing authority In the six months
ended June 30, 2013, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $165 related to the retroactive application of the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2013 that
was signed into law in January 2013, which resulted in the restoration of certain tax credits and other provisions.

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company’s outstanding long-term debt at June 30, 2014, and December 31, 2013 consisted of the Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B Loan (the
“Senior Secured Credit Facility”) entered into in 2013. Under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, the Company had outstanding letters of credit in the amount of
$5,441 at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 no amounts were outstanding under the revolving
credit agreement (without giving effect to the outstanding but undrawn letters of credit on such dates). As of June 30, 2014, the Company was in compliance with
all financial covenants under the Senior Secured Credit Facility. As of June 30, 2014 the fair value of the Company’s Senior Secured Credit Facility was $290,750
which represents the carrying value of the of the long-term debt plus the non-accreted portion of the original issuance discount.

The Company’s ability to pay cash dividends to our common stockholders is generally restricted under the terms of our Senior Secured Credit Facility to the
sum of (a) approximately $4,500, representing the unpaid portion of the $170,000 special equityholder distribution permitted under the Senior Secured Credit
Facility, (b) the aggregate amount of net proceeds received, and not otherwise applied to make required prepayments or certain permitted restricted payments, from
issuances of or contributions in respect of qualified equity interests (as defined in the credit agreement), and (c) so long as our Senior Secured Net Leverage Ratio
(as defined in the credit agreement) is less than or equal to 2.9 to 1.0 on a pro forma basis, an additional distribution amount. The additional distribution amount, in
turn, is calculated as $35,000 plus the sum of cumulative, annual (beginning with the year ended December 31, 2013) excess cash flow (as defined in our credit
agreement), in each case only to the extent not otherwise applied to make required prepayments or certain permitted restricted payments.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2014, $2,697 of the remaining $4,500 unpaid portion of the special equityholder distribution was paid as
management option-holder distribution. This payment was treated as additional compensation and was included in 2014 as a component of selling, general and
administrative expenses.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2014 and 2013, the Company leased office space from three entities owned and controlled by the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
under non-cancellable lease agreements that expire at various dates in 2019. The Company recorded payments associated with these lease agreements in the
amount of $906 and $732 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 
8. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes option activity from January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014:
 

   Shares    

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price 
Options outstanding at January 1, 2014    122,275    $ 134.84  

Granted    470     221.65  
Exercised    —       —    
Forfeited or canceled    1,400    $ 255.61  

    
 

    
 

Options outstanding at June 30, 2014    121,345    $ 133.31  
    

 

    

 

Options vested and exercisable at June 30, 2014    77,850    $ 56.54  
    

 

    

 

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company granted to employees options to purchase an aggregate of 470 shares of common stock, of which
117 vested immediately. The remaining options vest over three years, in equal installments, on the anniversary date of grant. The 470 stock options granted have an
estimated aggregate fair value, using the Black-Scholes-Merton formula, of $26. These options are exercisable only upon occurrence of a Liquidity Event (as
defined below), a performance condition, which as of June 30, 2014, management has determined is not considered probable. Accordingly, no expense has been
recognized for these performance-based stock options.

The 94,950 options granted in 2005, of which 77,850 are outstanding, are exercisable upon the completion of the vesting period. All other options granted
are exercisable only upon the completion of the vesting period and the occurrence of a performance condition, a Liquidity Event as defined in the 2005 Plan. The
2005 Plan defines a Liquidity Event as a sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or the sale, transfer or other
disposition, whether by merger or otherwise, of more than 50% of the capital stock held by Warburg Pincus on the date of each respective common stock option
grant to any third-party that is not an affiliate of Warburg Pincus (and at a minimum price). Additionally, should a Liquidity Event occur, 50% of the holder’s then
outstanding unvested options will vest and all vested options will then become exercisable. However, the holder must exercise all vested options by June 15th of
the calendar year following the Liquidity Event, or these exercisable options will otherwise expire.

As of June 30, 2014, there were 30,677 options that have vested but are not exercisable until the occurrence of the defined Liquidity Event. Additionally,
there were 12,818 non-vested performance based stock options for which no compensation expense will be recognized until the defined Liquidity Event is
effective.

If the Liquidity Event were to have occurred as of June 30, 2014, 50% of the then outstanding unvested options, or 6,408 options, would have immediately
vested and all vested options would be exercisable. The Company would have recognized $3,030 of compensation expense upon the occurrence of the Liquidity
Event with $727 of unrecognized compensation expense related to the remaining non-vested stock options to be recognized over the subsequent 2.4 years, the
weighted average vesting period of the remaining non-vested options.

On July 29, 2014 the Company entered into a definite agreement to be acquired by XPO Logistics (see Footnote 10). Under the terms of the agreement, all
outstanding, unvested options will automatically vest upon closing. The acquisition will also result in the achievement of the defined Liquidity Event. Accordingly,
upon closing the Company will record $3,757 of compensation expense.

Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, upon consummation of an initial public offering, the Company’s chief executive officer will receive
options to purchase 4% of the Company’s outstanding common stock, determined as of the day immediately preceding the consummating of the offering at an
exercise price equal to the per share price to the public of the common stock in the offering. The options will be subject to the terms and conditions of the
Company’s then applicable stock incentive plan and shall contain the standard vesting provisions applicable to the Company’s other senior executives.
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NEW BREED HOLDING COMPANY
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
 
9. SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On June 22, 2005, the Company received $44,634 in exchange for issuing 44,634 shares of Series A Convertible (“Series A”) Preferred Stock. Each share of
Series A Preferred Stock, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time and from time to time, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder
thereof, is convertible into fully paid and non-assessable shares of the Company’s common stock. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock was convertible into
17.68659356 shares of common stock at June 30, 2014. Future sales of equity at prices below the conversion price and other potentially dilutive events could result
in adjustments to the number of shares of common stock into which the preferred stock is convertible.

Automatic conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock into fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock, without the payment of additional
consideration by the holders thereof, would occur immediately upon the closing of the sale of the Company’s common stock in a firm commitment, underwritten
public offering registered under the Securities Act of 1933 in which the pre-money valuation of the common stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock is at least three times the conversion price and in which the aggregate proceeds from such public offering are at least $60 million.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 29, 2014, the Company entered into a definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with XPO Logistics, Inc. (“XPO”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Company will be an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of XPO. The Merger Agreement provides that XPO will
pay an aggregate consideration of approximately $615 million in cash and equity to acquire the Company on a cash-free, debt-free basis, assuming an agreed-upon
working capital balance as of the closing of the Merger. The closing of the transactions contemplated in the Merger Agreement is expected to occur in the third
quarter of 2014 and is subject to customary closing conditions.

11. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Discontinued Operations

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-08 “Presentation of Financial
Statements and Property, Plant, and Equipment—Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity.” ASU 2014-08
provides new guidance related to the definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain other
disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014
and interim periods within those years. Beginning in 2015, the Company will apply the new guidance, as applicable, to future disposals of components or
classifications as held for sale.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to
which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The ASU will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in
U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. The new standard is effective for us on January 1, 2017. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or
cumulative effect transition method. We are evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-09 will have on our financial statements and related disclosures. We have not yet
selected a transition method nor have we determined the effect of the standard on our ongoing financial reporting.
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